

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 6:00PM ABITA SPRINGS TOWN HALL 22161 Level St., Abita Springs, LA 70420

Posted: May 15, 2023 4pm

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Patterson INVOCATION: Alderman Boudreaux PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Alderman Congemi

# **ANNOUNCEMENTS**:

# **ROLL CALL:**

Call for Agenda Modifications Accept April 18, 2023, Town Council Meeting Minutes Accept the March 2023 Financial Report

### **OLD BUSINESS:**

1.) None

### **NEW BUSINESS:**

1.) Presentation/Discussion of Instrument 2023-003 an ordinance amending the town of abita springs code of ordinances to provide for the enforcement of certain traffic violations by automated means and provides for civil penalties for certain traffic violations enforced by automated means, and otherwise providing with respect thereto and to provide for related matters

**OPEN SECTION:** 

**ADJOURNMENT:** 

N ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE, PLEASE CONTACT US AT (985) 892-0711. PLEASE CONTACT TOWN HALL AT THE SAME NUMBER FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING THIS AGENDA.



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN OF ABITA SPRINGS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS BY AUTOMATED MEANS AND PROVIDES FOR CIVIL PENALTIES FOR CERTAIN TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS ENFORCED BY AUTOMATED MEANS, AND OTHERWISE PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO

## AT A REGULAR MEETING HELD THE \_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_ 2023 BY THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF ABITA SPRINGS THE SAID GOVERNING BODY CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING:

**Whereas,** data collected on behalf of the Town of Abita Springs indicates a high incidence of drivers disregarding speeding laws on the streets and in the school zones of the Town of Abita Springs; and

**Whereas**, the town Board of Alderman finds controlling speed on the streets of the Town of Abita Springs through a program utilizing photographic evidence and enforcement through the imposition of civil penalties will help promote and protect the health, safety, and welfare of the children and all citizens of the Town of Abita Springs; and

Now, Therefore, be it ordained that the electronic traffic enforcement procedure is adopted as follows:

### Section 1:

The Town of Abita Springs Board of Alderman now finds it necessary and expedient to amend the Town of Abita Springs Code of Ordinances by adding **Part 7 Chapter 8 Section 7-803- Electronic Traffic Enforcement.** 

# Definitions

The following definitions shall apply:

Administrative Adjudication Hearing- shall mean an administrative hearing of violations conducted by the Mayor's Court Magistrate or the Mayor's designee.

*Department* shall mean the Abita Springs Police Department, or an authorized representative as determined by the Chief.

*Magistrate/Hearing Officer* shall mean a licensed attorney designated who meets the qualification contained within the chapter and who is designated by the mayor to preside over the Mayor's Court or the Mayor's designee.

Mayor shall mean the Town of Abita Springs Mayor.

*Owner* shall mean the owner of a vehicle as shown on the vehicle registration records of the Louisiana Office of Public Safety, Office of Motor Vehicles, or the analogous office of agency of another state or county.

*Photographic* vehicle speed enforcement system or system shall mean a system consisting of an electronic process which is capable of producing one or more recorded images depicting the license plate attached to the rear of a vehicle being operated at a speed in excess of the speed limit. The speed measurement component of the system shall be properly calibrated on a regular basis as determined by the Chief and the records of such calibration shall be maintained with the Town of Abita Springs Police Department.



*Recorded* image means an image recorded by the system depicting the rear of a vehicle which is automatically recorded on a photograph or digital image, which also depicts the recorded speed, date, location, and time of the recorded image.

*System location* means the highway location toward which a photographic vehicle speed enforcement system is directed and in operation or a segment of roadway on which a vehicle speed enforcement system is in operation.

Speed limit shall mean the established regulatory speed limit on the subject roadway.

Violation shall mean the notice of civil violation for speeding for this Chapter.

# Imposition of civil violation penalty for violations enforced by a photographic speed enforcement system.

- a. The Town finds that a vehicle traveling over the speed limit for the vehicle's direction of travel damages the public by endangering vehicle operators, passengers and pedestrians alike, by increasing the number of serious traffic crashes, and causing public safety agencies to respond at the expense of the taxpayers thereby decreasing the efficiency of traffic control and traffic flow effort.
- b. Except as provided in subsections (c) and (d) below, the owner of a vehicle is responsible for a civil violation penalty as shown in the following table if the vehicle is traveling at a speed in miles per hour (mph) greater than the speed limit as shown when captured by the system in accordance with the vehicle's recorded speed and the corresponding speed limit of the roadway where the notice of civil violation was issued.

MPH OVER LIMIT FINE AMOUNTS	MPH OVER LIMIT	FINE AMOUNTS
6 MPH TO 10 MPH \$200.00	6 MPH to 10 MPH	\$220.00
11 MPH to 20 MPH \$230.00	11 MPH to 15 MPH	\$250.00
21 MPH to 30 MPH \$250.00	15 MPH to 20 MPH	\$270.00
31 MPH to 100+ MPH \$300.00	Over 21 MPH	\$320.00

Following the guidelines as established by DOTD, the following thresholds shall be established: Minimum Speed for Violation to be Issued in a School Zone is 6 MPH over the posted speed limit.

Minimum Speed for Violation to Be Issued is 6 MPH over the posted speed limit.

c. Any photographic vehicle speed enforcement system which is hand-held, mounted in or on a trailer or in a fixed position shall be deployed at the discretion of the Chief of Police, who shall deploy such systems in his discretion within the Town of Abita Springs.

# Late Payments

An owner who fails to pay a civil violation penalty beyond 30 calendar days from the date of (985) 892-0711 • P.O. Box 461 • Abita Springs, LA 70420 • townofabitasprings.com



mailing the civil notice of violation, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, shall be subject to a late payment penalty of \$30.00 (e.g., original civil violation + 30= total civil violation amount including late payment penalty) A notice of civil violation under this article is presumed to have been received on the tenth calendar day, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, after the date the notice of civil violation is mailed.

### **Enforcement; Procedures**

- a. The Department is responsible for the enforcement and administration of this ordinance, or the Department may enforce and administer this ordinance in part or in whole, through one or more contractors selected in accordance with applicable law. The actions which can be used to enforce the payment of this civil penalty and related fees include but are not limited to: referring the debtor to collection agencies and/or initiating actions through a court of competent jurisdiction any other lawful means, all in accordance with applicable authority, laws and procedure.
- b. In order to impose a civil violation penalty under this article, the Department shall mail a notice of civil violation to the owner of the vehicle responsible for the civil violation penalty not later than the 30<sup>th</sup> calendar day, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, after the date the Department reviews and inspects the recorded images, and an alleged civil violation is determined by the Department to have occurred.
- c. A notice of civil violation issued under this article shall contain the following:
  - (1) A description of the violation alleged
  - (2) The date, time and location of the violation
  - (3) A copy of a recorded image of the vehicle involved in the violation
  - (4) The amount of the civil violation penalty to be imposed for the violation
  - (5) The date by which the civil violation penalty must be paid
  - (6) A statement indication the person named in the notice of civil violation may pay the civil violation penalty in lieu of appearing at the administrative adjudication hearing
  - (7) Information informing the person named in the notice of civil violation
    - a. Of the right to contest the imposition of the civil violation penalty in an administrative adjudications hearing
    - b. Of the manner and time in which to contest the imposition of the civil violation penalty and
    - c. Failure to pay the civil violation penalty or to contest liability within 40 calendar days from the date of receipt of the civil notice of violation, inclusive to weekends and legal holidays, is a waiver of the right to appeal.
  - (8) A statement that a recorded image is evidence in a proceeding for the imposition of a civil violation penalty and
  - (9) A statement indicating failure to pay the civil violation penalty within the time allowed shall result in the imposition of an additional late penalty for each such violation



A notice of civil violation under this article is presumed to have been received on the tenth calendar day, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, after the date the notice of civil violation is mailed.

# Administrative Hearing

- a. A person who receives a notice of civil violation may contest the imposition of the civil violation penalty by submitting a request in writing for an administrative adjudication hearing of the notice of civil violation penalty within 30 calendar days, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, after date of mailing of the notice of civil violation and posting a hearing request and cash bond of \$50.00 Upon receipt of a request and cash bond within the prescribed time period within this paragraph, the office shall notify the person requesting such hearing of the date and time of the administrative adjudication hearing. If, after the adjudication hearing, the person is found not liable by the adjudication officer, the cash bond of \$50.00 will be refunded to the person If the person is found liable, he or she may ask that the cash bond of \$50.00 be used towards the payment of the civil violation.
- b. A person who is found liable after an administrative adjudication hearing or who requests an administrative adjudication hearing and thereafter fails to appear at the time and place of the hearing shall forfeit their cash bond amount.
- c. Administrative adjudications of violations shall be conducted by the hearing officer designated by the Attorney. In conducted administrative adjudication of violations, the hearing officer shall have the following function, powers and duties:
  - 1. To administer oaths, to accept admissions to, and to hear and determine contests of, violations herein.
  - 2. To require the attendance of persons to give testimony at hearing, and to require the production of data and information, to the extent permitted by law.
  - 3. To adjudicate violations for which a notice of civil violation has been issued herein.
  - To compile and maintain accurate records relating to notice of civil violation, violations and / or dispositions of violations and notice of civil violation
  - 5. Upon request of the Department or a person changed with a violation or his attorney, to prepare or provide transcripts or audio records of hearings conducted by the Magistrate/ hearing officer and to furnish such transcripts or audio records to the requesting person at a reasonable cost.
  - 6. To designate an individual or individuals with the responsibility to answer, within a reasonable period to time, relevant and reasonable inquiries made by a person charged with a violation, or his attorney, concerning the violation.



- 7. The functions and duties in (4). (5). and (6) identified herein may be performed by representatives of the Department, as directed by the Magistrate/hearing officer.
- 8. To prescribe regulations for the presentation and the conduct of hearings which need not necessarily be in strict conformity with the usual rules of evidence and technical rules of procedure, however, the fundamental principles governing a fair and impartial hearing or trial and due process of law must be reasonably and substantially adhered to.
- d. Except as provided in subsection (h), failure to pay a civil violation penalty or to contest liability beyond 30 calendar days from the date of mailing of the notice of civil violation, inclusive of weekends and legal holidays, constitutes a waiver of the right to contest under subsection (a).
- e. The civil violation penalty shall not be assessed if after a hearing, the Magistrate/hearing officer enters a finding of no liability.
- f. In an administrative adjudication hearing, the issues must be proved at the hearing by preponderance of the evidence. The reliability of the system used to produce the recorded image of the violation may be attested to in an administrative adjudication hearing by affidavit of a law enforcement officer or a representative of the Department, or by actual testimony by either of them. An affidavit of a sworn law enforcement officer or representative of the Department or actual testimony by either of them, that alleges a civil violation occurred based on an inspection of the pertinent recorded image is admissible in a proceeding under this article and is prima facie evidence of those facts contained in the affidavit to testified to. Testimony by any person shall be taken under oath or by affirmation, except to the extent such testimony is allowed by affidavit as provided above. The person charge with the ordinance violation may present any relevant evidence and testimony as such hearing.
- g. It shall be affirmative defense to the imposition of civil liability under this article, to be proven by a preponderance of the evidence, that
  - (1) The operator of the vehicle was acting in compliance with the lawful order direction of a law enforcement or public safety officer;
  - (2) The operator of the vehicle violat3d the speed limited so to move out the way or an immediately approaching authorized emergency vehicle;
  - (3) The vehicle was being operated as an authorized emergency vehicle under La. R.S. 32:24, and the operator was acting in compliance with LA R.S. 32:24
  - (4) The vehicle was being operated in accordance with La. R.S. 32:300.3-Funeral Procession; however, the operators are not exempt if they fail to comply with division 2, vehicle speed;
  - (5) The vehicle was being operated by a commissioned law enforcement officer performing authorized/assigned tasks;
  - (6) The vehicle was being operated during a bona fide medical emergency which is documented with adequate and sufficient evidence from a medical care facility, as determined by the Department;



- (7) At the time of the violation the vehicle was in the care, custody or control of another person:
  - a. As set forth in the owner's written statement identifying the name and correct mailing address of the person or entity who had the care, custody and control of the vehicle at the time of the violation.
  - b. As set forth in a document or Transfer of Liability, signed and dated by the person or representative of the entity, who had the care, custody and control of the vehicle at the time of the violation, indicating his/her responsibility for the violation and listing his/her name and mailing address. Responsibility for the violation shall in such a case be transferred to the person identified in the "Transfer of Liability."
  - c. The tender of statement of "Transfer of Liability" shall be for the sole purpose of identifying the person who is assuming responsibility for the violation identified in the notice of civil violation, but all defense that may be asserted by the person alleged to be responsible are reserved and are not waived by the tender of such document.
  - d. As set forth in a lease, rental contract or other agreement listing the name and mailing address of the person or entity who had the care, custody or control of the leased or rented vehicle at the time of the violation. Responsibility for the violation shall in such case be transferred to the lessee.
- h. Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, a person who fails to pay the amount of a civil violation penalty or to contest liability is entitled to an administrative adjudication hearing or the violation if:
  - 1. The person files an affidavit with the office stating the date on which the person received the notice of civil violation mailed to the person; and
  - 2. The person files a request for an administrative hearing within 30 days from the date of receipt of the notice of civil violation, as stated in the affidavit.
- I. The decision of the hearing officer shall be the final decision in the hearing

# Order of the Magistrate

- 1. The Magistrate/hearing officer at administrative adjudication hearing under this article shall issue and order stating;
  - a. Whether the person charged with the violation is responsible for the violation and
  - b. The amount of any civil violation penalty, late penalty, and administrative adjudication costs assessed against the person
- 2. The orders issued under subsection (1) may be filed with the Department. The Department shall maintain the Magistrate/hearing officer's orders/determination.

### Effect of liability; exclusion of civil remedy



- a. The imposition of a civil violation penalty under this article shall not be considered a criminal conviction.
- b. A civil violation penalty may not be imposed under the article upon the owner of a vehicle if the operation or the vehicle was arrested or was issued a speeding citation and notice to appear by a law enforcement or public safety officer as a violation of any of rhe provision of Subpart A, Part IV, Chapter 1 of Title 32 of the Louisiana Revised States if such violation was captured by the system.
- c. Upon receipt of all documents supplied to the contractor, the Magistrate may enforce collection of all unpaid fines, fees, penalties, late payment penalties and administrative adjudication fees in a court of competent jurisdiction for vehicles registered through a filing with the Louisiana Office of revenue and the Federal Offset Program.
- d. The Chief or contractor, as applicable, shall supply to the Magistrate, or outside counsel bringing suit, all materials and /or testimony necessary to support enforcement.
- e. Defendants in enforcement authorized by this section have, until rendition of final judgement, the option of settlement by payment of all outstanding fines, fees, penalties, late payments penalties and administrative adjudication fees, as well as court costs and filing fees incurred (whether prepaid or otherwise) in enforcement. No defendant in such suit shall be required to pay attorney's fees in connection with such settlement.

### **Collection Fees and Costs**

In the event a fine or penalty is assessed pursuant to any provision of this Code, a default in the payment of a fine, penalty or any installment of a fine or penalty may be collected by any means authorized for the collection of monetary judgements. The Department may retain attorneys and private collection agent's for the purpose of collecting any default in payment of any fine or penalty imposed by the Code, or any installment of a fine or penalty. The Department shall add a 35% cost of collections to any outstanding balance that requires the Department to retain the services of a collection agency. This 35% cost includes any default in a fine, penalty or any installment of a fine or penalty that was previously referred to an attorney or private agency and the payment of which remains outstanding.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,** that if any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions, items or application of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provisions, items or application and it this end the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable.